
 

THE COTTONWOOD SCHOOL 
3840 Rosin Court #200, Sacramento, California 95834                                                                
  Phone (916) 568-9959  *  Fax (916) 664-3995       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

                                  
 
 

The Cottonwood School 
Special Board Meeting 

April 18, 2019 – 5:30 pm – 6:00 pm  
3840 Rosin Court #200 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

 
Through Teleconference 

 
Jenny Thompson 

7643 Lauppe Lane 
Citrus Heights, CA 95621 

 
Christina Mulford      Teresa Lyday Selby 

     15010 West Kings Drive              8098 McClung Dr  
        Surprise, AZ 85374         Citrus Heights, CA 95610 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Public Comments 

3. Approval of Board Resolutions 

a. Articles of Incorporation 

b. Bylaws 

c. Election of Officers 

d. Fiscal Year End 

e. Depository 

f. Authority to Transact Business 

g. Tax-Exempt Status and Charitable Solicitation 

h. Conflict of Interest Policy 

4. Approval of Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure as a Public Agency 

5. Approval of SELPA Assurances 

6. Approval of SELPA Participation Agreement 

 
 
 



 

THE COTTONWOOD SCHOOL 
3840 Rosin Court #200, Sacramento, California 95834                                                                
  Phone (916) 568-9959  *  Fax (916) 664-3995       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

                                  
 
 

Public comment rules:  Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items.  Please fill out a 
yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject 
area.  We ask that comments are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many  
people as possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, 
at its discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion. 

1.  
2.  
3.  
4.  
5.  
6.  

 
Note:  The Cottonwood School Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to 
participate in the public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 818-207-3837 at least 48 hours before the 
scheduled 

 



 
150003.00101/119086704v.1 

THE COTTONWOOD SCHOOL 
 

*    *    *  
 

BOARD RESOLUTIONS 
 
 

I. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

 
   WHEREAS, the Articles of Incorporation were filed with the California 

Secretary of State and were approved on January 23, 2019; therefore, be it 
 
   RESOLVED, that the Secretary of this Corporation is hereby ordered to file 

the Articles of Incorporation and Certificate of Incorporation with the records of the 
Corporation.  

 
 II.  CORPORATE BYLAWS 
 
   RESOLVED, that the Bylaws attached hereto were adopted by Herbert 

Nichols, the sole incorporator of the Corporation, and that the Board hereby adopts 
and ratifies said Bylaws as and for the Bylaws of the Corporation; 

 
   FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Secretary of the Corporation shall file 

these Bylaws with the records of the Corporation.  
 
 III.   ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
   RESOLVED, that the following individuals are hereby elected to the officer 

positions indicated for a period of one year and until their successors are elected 
and shall qualify:        

 
   President:  Jenny Thompson 
   Secretary:  Christina Mulford 
   Treasurer:  Teresa Lyday-Shelby 
 
 IV. FISCAL YEAR END 
 
   RESOLVED, that the fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on the last 

day of June in each year. 
 
 V. DEPOSITORY 
 
   RESOLVED, that the depository for the funds of the Corporation shall be 

at all times a federally chartered national bank with branches throughout California 
(the “Bank”); and 

 
   FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are authorized 

and directed to open a checking account and such other accounts as needed from 
time to time with said Bank; and  

 

Page 3 of 41



 
150003.00101/119086704v.1 

   FURTHER RESOLVED, that the form resolutions prescribed by said Bank 
for the opening of such accounts are hereby approved and adopted, and the 
officers of the Corporation are authorized and directed to execute such form 
resolutions in the name, and on behalf, of the Corporation; and   

 
   FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Bank is authorized and directed to honor 

checks and other orders for the payment of money drawn in the name of the 
Corporation when signed by any of the following individuals: 

 
   Herbert Nichols 
       
 VI. AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS 
 
   RESOLVED, that the proper officers of this Corporation be and hereby are 

authorized and directed, on behalf of the Corporation, to make and file such 
certificate or certificates, report or reports, or other instrument or instruments as 
may be required by law to be filed in any state, territory, or dependency of the 
United States, or in any foreign country in which said officers shall find it necessary 
or expedient to file the same to authorize the Corporation to transact business in 
such state, territory, dependency, or foreign country.  

  
         VII. TAX-EXEMPT STATUS AND CHARITABLE SOLICITATION 
 
   RESOLVED, that the Board authorizes and directs the officers of the 

Corporation to prepare and file an application for recognition of tax exemption with 
the Internal Revenue Service to obtain a determination that the Corporation is 
exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. 

   
   RESOLVED, that the Board authorizes and directs the officers of the 

Corporation to prepare and file such application or other documentation as are 
necessary to obtain a determination from the proper authorities that the 
Corporation is exempt from taxes imposed by the State of California. 

 
         VIII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
   RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Corporation, the Conflict of Interest 

Policy (the “Policy”) submitted herewith is hereby adopted and approved, and the 
Secretary of the Corporation is hereby directed to insert a copy of the same in the 
corporate minutes.  

Page 4 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

BYLAWS 
 

OF 
 

THE COTTONWOOD SCHOOL 
 

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
OFFICES 

 
 Section 1.  PRINCIPAL OFFICE.  The board of directors shall fix the location of the 
principal executive office of the corporation at any place within or outside the State of California.  If 
the principal executive office is located outside the State of California, and the corporation has one 
or more offices in the State of California, the board of directors shall likewise fix and designate a 
principal office in the State of California. 
 
 Section 2.  OTHER OFFICES.  The corporation may also establish offices at such 
other places, both within and outside the State of California, as the board of directors may from time 
to time determine or the activities of the corporation may require. 
 

ARTICLE II 
OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES 

 
 The specific objectives and purposes of this corporation shall be to operate one or 
more California public charter schools.  
 

ARTICLE III 
NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES 

 
 The corporation has been formed under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit 
Corporation Law (the "Law") for the public, nonprofit, nonpartisan, and charitable purposes described 
in its articles of incorporation.  Notwithstanding any other provision in these bylaws, this corporation 
shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are 
not in furtherance of the purposes of this corporation, and the corporation shall not carry on any other 
activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("IRC"), or (b) by a corporation 
contributions to which are deductible under IRC Section 170(c)(2). 
 

ARTICLE IV 
DEDICATION OF ASSETS 

 
 The properties and assets of this corporation are irrevocably dedicated to the 
charitable purposes described in Article III above and in the articles of incorporation of this 
corporation.  No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of this corporation, on dissolution or 
otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of its directors or officers, or to any individual. On liquidation or 
dissolution of this corporation, all remaining assets of this corporation, after payment, or provision 

Page 5 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this corporation, shall be distributed and paid over to an 
organization dedicated to charitable purposes that is exempt from federal income tax under IRC 
Section 501(c)(3) and that is exempt from California income tax under Section 23701d of the 
California Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 

ARTICLE V 
MEMBERS 

 
 Section 1. SOLE MEMBER. Inspire Charter Schools, a California Nonprofit Public 
Benefit Corporation exempt from federal income tax under IRC Section 501(c)(3) (the “Sole 
Member”), shall be the sole member of this corporation as the term “member” is defined in Section 
5056 of the California Corporations Code (the “Code”). The Sole Member shall have all the rights 
granted to members by Section 5056 of the Code. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
DIRECTORS 

 
 Section 1.  POWERS.  Subject to the provisions of the Law and any limitations in the 
articles of incorporation and these bylaws, the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be 
managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the board of 
directors.  Without prejudice to such general powers, but subject to the same limitations, it is hereby 
expressly declared that the board of directors shall have the following powers in addition to the other 
powers enumerated in these bylaws: 
 
  (a) To select and remove all of the other officers, agents, and employees 
of the corporation; prescribe any powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the 
articles of incorporation, and with these bylaws; fix their compensation; and require from them 
security for faithful service. 
 
  (b) To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and activities of the 
corporation and to make such rules and regulations that are consistent with law, the articles of 
incorporation, and these bylaws, as they deem to be appropriate and in the best interests of the 
corporation. 
 
  (c) To adopt, make, and use a corporate seal; and to alter the form of such 
seal. 
 
  (d) To borrow money and to incur indebtedness on behalf of the 
corporation, and to cause to be executed and delivered for the purposes of the corporation, in the 
corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, 
hypothecations, or other evidences of debt and securities. 
 
  (e) To change the principal executive office or the principal office in the 
State of California from one location to another; to cause the corporation to be qualified to conduct 
its activities in any other state, territory, dependency, or country and conduct its activities within or 
outside the State of California; and to designate any place within or outside the State of California 
for the holding of any board of directors meeting or meetings. 
 

Page 6 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

  (f) To make donations for the public welfare or for community funds, 
hospital, charitable, educational, scientific, civic, religious, or similar purposes. 
 
  (g) To act as a trustee under any trust incidental to the principal objects of 
the corporation, and to receive, to hold, to administer, to exchange, and to expend funds and property 
subject to such trust. 
 
  (h) To receive endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and donations of all 
kinds of property for its own use, or in trust, in order to carry out or to assist in carrying out, the 
objects and purposes of the corporation and to do all things and acts necessary or proper to carry 
out each and all of the purposes and provisions of such endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and 
donations with full power to mortgage, sell, lease, or otherwise to deal with or dispose of the same 
in accordance with the terms thereof. 
 
  (i) To sell any property, real, personal, or mixed, owned by the 
corporation at any time, and from time to time upon such terms as the board of directors may deem 
advisable, at public or private sale, for cash or upon credit. 
 
  (j) To retain sums received by the corporation uninvested, if, in the 
discretion of the board of trustees, such sums cannot be invested advantageously. 
 
  (k) To retain all or any part of any securities or property acquired by the 
corporation in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by the corporation, 
according to the judgment of the board of directors without being restricted to the class of 
investments that the board of directors is or may hereafter be permitted by law to make or any similar 
restriction; provided, however, that no action shall be taken by or on behalf of the corporation if such 
action is a prohibited transaction or would result in the denial of the tax exemption under IRC Section 
501 or Section 23701 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 
  (l) To invest funds received by the corporation in stocks, bonds, 
mortgages, loans, whether secured or unsecured, or other investments as the board of directors 
shall deem advisable. 
 
 Section 2.  NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION.  The authorized number of directors 
shall be no less than three (3) and no more than eleven (11), unless changed by amendments to 
these bylaws. All directors are to be designated by the Sole Member. The board of directors shall 
consist of at least three (3) directors unless changed by an amendment to these bylaws. 
 
 Section 3.  RESTRICTION ON INTERESTED PERSONS AS DIRECTORS.  No more 
than 49 percent of the persons serving on the board of directors may be interested persons (as 
defined in this Section 3).  An “interested person” is (a) any person compensated by the corporation 
for services rendered to it within the previous 12 months, whether as a full- or part-time employee, 
independent contractor, or otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation, if any, paid to a 
director as director; or (b) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-
in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. 
 
 Section 4.  TERM OF OFFICE; EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD.  Each 
director shall hold office for one (1) year.  A director may serve multiple terms of service, subject to 

Page 7 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

approval by the Sole Member.  A vacancy or vacancies on the board of directors shall occur in the 
event of (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (b) the declaration by resolution of the 
board of directors of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been convicted of a felony, declared 
of unsound mind by a court order, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached 
a duty under the Law, Chapter 2, Article 3; (c) the increase of the authorized number of directors; 
and (d) the failure of the Sole Member, at any meeting of the Sole Member at which any director or 
directors are to be designated, to designate the number of directors required to be designated at 
such meeting. 
 
 Section 5.  RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS. Except as provided below, any director 
may resign by giving written notice to the chairman of the board, if any, or to the president, or the 
secretary, or to the board of directors. The resignation shall be effective when the notice is given 
unless the notice specifies a later time for the resignation to become effective. If a director’s 
resignation is effective at a later time, the Sole Member may designate a successor to take office as 
of the date when the resignation becomes effective. Except upon notice to the Attorney General of 
California, no director may resign if the corporation would then be left without a duly elected director 
or directors in charge of its affairs. 
 
 Section 6.  REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS. A director may be removed by the Sole 
Member. The Sole Member, in its sole discretion, may remove a director at any time for any reason, 
with or without cause or advance notice. 
 
 Section 7.  VACANCIES.  Vacancies on the board of directors shall be filled solely by 
the Sole Member. 
 
 Section 8.  PLACE OF MEETINGS AND MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE.  Any meeting 
of the board of directors may be held at any place within or outside the State of California that has 
been designated from time to time by resolution of the board or in the notice of the meeting.  In the 
absence of such designation, meetings shall be held at the principal executive office of the 
corporation.  Any meeting, annual, regular or special, may be held by conference telephone or similar 
communication equipment, so long as all directors participating in the meeting can hear one another.  
All such directors shall be deemed to be present in person at such telephonic meeting. Prior written 
notice of any and all such meetings of the board of directors shall be provided to the Sole Member 
at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time of the holding of the meeting. 
 
 Section 9.  ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS.  The annual meeting of the board 
of directors shall be held each year on the date and time as may be fixed by the board of directors.  
At such annual meeting, officers shall be elected and any other proper business may be transacted.  
Other regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held at such time as shall from time to time 
be fixed by the board of directors.  Notice of regular meetings shall not be required if the time and 
place of such meeting is fixed by these bylaws or by the board of directors. 
 
 Section 10.  SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the board of directors for any 
purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman of the board, the president, any vice 
president, the secretary, or any two directors. 
 
  Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be delivered to each 
director personally or by telephone or sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, or telegram, charges 

Page 8 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

prepaid, addressed to each director at his or her address as it is shown on the records of the 
corporation.  In case the notice is mailed, it shall be deposited in the United States mail at least four 
(4) days prior to the time of the holding of the meeting.  In case such notice is delivered personally 
or by telephone or telegraph, it shall be delivered personally or by telephone or to the telegraph 
company at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time of the holding of the meeting.  Any oral notice 
given personally or by telephone may be communicated either to the director or to the person at the 
office of the director who the person giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly 
communicate it to the director.  The notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting nor the place 
if the meeting is to be held at the principal executive office of the corporation. 
 
 Section 11. QUORUM.  A majority of the authorized number of directors shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 13 
below.  Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly 
held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the board of directors, subject to 
the provisions of Section 5212 of the Code (appointment of committees), Section 5233 of the Code 
(approval of contracts or transactions in which a director has a direct or indirect material financial 
interest), Section 5234 of the Code (approval of certain transactions between corporations having 
common directorships), Section 5235 (compensation of directors or officers), and Section 5238(e) of 
the Code (indemnification of directors).  A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue 
to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by 
at least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number as is required 
by the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or the Law. 
 
 Section 12.  WAIVER OF NOTICE; CONSENT.  Notice of a meeting need not be 
given to any director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver of notice, a consent to 
holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the meeting. The waiver of notice or consent 
need not specify the purpose of the meeting.  All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be 
filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.  Notice of meeting shall 
also be deemed given to any director who attends the meeting without protesting, before or at the 
commencement of the meeting, the lack of notice to that director. 
 
 Section 13.  ADJOURNMENT.  A majority of the directors present, whether or not 
constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place.  Notice of the time and 
place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given, unless the meeting is adjourned for more 
than twenty-four (24) hours, in which case notice of such time and place shall be given prior to the 
time of the adjourned meeting, in the manner specified in Section 10 of this Article VI, to the directors 
who were not present at the time of the adjournment. 
 
 Section 14.  ACTION WITHOUT MEETING.  Any action required or permitted to be 
taken by the board of directors may be taken without a meeting, if all directors shall individually or 
collectively consent in writing to such action.  Such action by written consent shall have the same 
force and effect as a unanimous vote of the board of directors.  The written consent or consents shall 
be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board. 
 
 Section 15.  FEES AND COMPENSATION.  Directors and members of committees 
shall receive no compensation for their services; provided however, that directors and members of 
committees may receive reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as determined by resolution of 
the board of directors.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude any director from 

Page 9 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

serving the corporation in any other capacity as an officer, agent, employee, or otherwise, and 
receiving compensation for such services if compensation is awarded by the board of directors. 
 
  Section 16.  RESTRICTION ON BOARD AUTHORITY. The board of directors shall 
not, without the prior written approval of the Sole Member, make material revisions to the charter 
that created the charter school that operates as, or is operated by, this corporation. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
COMMITTEES 

 
 Section 1.  COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS.  The board of directors may, by 
resolution adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, designate one or more committees, 
each consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the board.  Appointments to 
such committees shall be by a majority vote of the directors then in office.  The board may designate 
one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member 
at any meeting of the committee.  Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the 
board, may have all the authority of the board, except with respect to: 
 
  (a)   undertaking any final action on any matter that, under the Law, also 
requires approval of the Sole Member or board of directors; 
 
  (b) the filling of vacancies on the board of directors or in any committee; 
 
  (c) the amendment or repeal of bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws; 
 
  (d) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the board of directors 
that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable; 
 
  (e) the appointment of any other committees of the board of directors or 
the members thereof; 
 
  (f) the expenditure of corporate funds to support a nominee for director 
after there are more people nominated for director than can be elected; or 
 
  (g) the approval of any contract or transaction to which the corporation is 
a party and in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest, except as special 
approval is provided for in Section 5233(d)(3) of the Code. 
 
 Section 2.  MEETINGS AND ACTION.  Meetings and action of committees of the 
board shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article VI of 
these bylaws, Sections 8 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone), 9 (annual and regular 
meetings), 10 (special meetings), 11 (quorum), 12 (waiver of notice), 13 (adjournment) and 14 (action 
without meeting), with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to substitute 
the committee and its members for the board of directors and its members, except for the following:  
(a) the time of regular and annual meetings of committees may be determined by resolution of the 
board of directors as well as the committee; (b) special meetings of committees may also be called 
by resolution of the board of directors; and (c) and notice of special meetings of committees shall 
also be given to all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings of the 

Page 10 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

committee.  Minutes of each meeting of any committee shall be kept and filed with the corporate 
records.  The board of directors may adopt rules for the government of any committee not 
inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 
OFFICERS 

 
 Section 1.  OFFICERS.  The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a 
secretary, and a chief financial officer.  The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the board 
of directors, a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, 
one or more assistant treasurers, and such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 3 of this Article VIII.  Any number of offices may be held by the same person, 
except that neither the secretary nor the chief financial officer may serve concurrently as the 
president or the chairman of the board. 
 
 Section 2.  ELECTION.  The officers of the corporation, except such officers as may 
be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5 of this Article VIII, shall be 
chosen by the board of directors, and each shall serve at the pleasure of the board, subject to the 
rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment. 
 
 Section 3.  OTHER OFFICERS.  The board of directors may appoint, and may 
empower the president to appoint, such other officers as the activities of the corporation may require, 
each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are 
provided in the bylaws or as the board of directors may from time to time determine. 
 
 Section 4.  REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION.  Subject to the rights, if any, of any officer 
under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the 
board of directors or, except in case of an officer chosen by the board of directors, by any officer 
upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by the board of directors. 
 
  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation.  
Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time 
specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall 
not be necessary to make it effective.  Any such resignation is without prejudice to the rights, if any, 
of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party. 
 
 Section 5.  VACANCIES.  A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, 
removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws 
for regular appointments to such office. 
 
 Section 6.  CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD.  The chairman of the board, if such an 
officer be elected, shall, if present, preside at meetings of the board of directors and exercise and 
perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him or her by the 
board of directors or prescribed by the bylaws.  If there is no president, the chairman of the board 
will in addition be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall have the powers and duties 
prescribed in Section 7 of this Article VIII. 
 

Page 11 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

 Section 7.  PRESIDENT.  Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given 
by the board of directors to the chairman of the board, if there be such an officer, the president shall 
be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the board of 
directors, have general supervision, direction, and control of the activities and the officers of the 
corporation.  He or she shall preside, in the absence of the chairman of the board, or if there be 
none, at all meetings of the board of directors.  He or she shall have the general powers and duties 
of management usually vested in the office of president of the corporation and shall have such other 
powers and duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws. 
 
 Section 8.  VICE PRESIDENTS.  In the absence or disability of the president, the vice 
presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors or, if not ranked, a vice 
president designated by the board of directors, shall perform all the duties of the president, and when 
so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the president.  The 
vice presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time 
may be prescribed for them respectively by the board of directors or the bylaws and the president or 
the chairman of the board. 
 
 Section 9.  SECRETARY.  The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the 
principal executive office or such other place as the board of directors may direct, a book of minutes 
of all meetings and actions of directors, and committees of directors, with the time and place of 
holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the 
names of those present at directors and committee meetings, and the proceedings thereof. 
 
  The secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the 
board of directors required by the bylaws or by law to be given, and he or she shall keep the seal of 
the corporation, if one be adopted, in safe custody, and shall have such other powers and perform 
such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or by the bylaws. 
 
 Section 10.  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.  The chief financial officer shall keep and 
maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of accounts 
of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts of its assets, 
liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and other matters 
customarily included in financial statements.  The books of account shall at all reasonable times be 
open to inspection by any director. 
 
  The chief financial officer shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, all monies 
and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositaries as may 
be designated by the board of directors.  He or she shall distribute, or cause to be disbursed, the 
funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the board of directors, shall render to the president 
and directors, whenever they request it, an account of all financial transactions and of the financial 
condition of the corporation, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may 
be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws. 
 
  If required by the board of directors, the chief financial officer shall give the 
corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the board for faithful 
performance of the duties of his or her office and for restoration to the corporation of all of its books, 
papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in his or her possession or under his or 
her control on the death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office of the chief financial officer. 

Page 12 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

 
ARTICLE IX 

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES 
 
 Section 1.  DEFINITIONS.  For the purposes of this Article IX, the definition of the 
terms "agent", "proceeding", and "expenses" shall be governed by Section 5238 of the Code. 
 
 Section 2.  INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY THIRD PARTIES.  The corporation 
shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party 
to any proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in 
its favor, an action brought under Section 5233 of the Code, or an action brought by the Attorney 
General of California or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General of California for any 
breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust) by reason of the fact that such person is or 
was an agent of the corporation, against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts 
actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding if such person acted in good 
faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the corporation 
and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the conduct of such 
person was unlawful.  The termination of any proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, 
or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the 
person did not act in good faith and in a manner which the person reasonably believed to be in the 
best interests of the corporation or that the person had reasonable cause to believe that the person's 
conduct was unlawful. 
 
 Section 3.  INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY OR IN THE RIGHT OF THE 
CORPORATION.  The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party 
or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action by or in the right 
of the corporation, or brought under Section 5233 of the Code, or brought by the Attorney General 
of California or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General of California for breach of 
duty relating to assets held in charitable trust, to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact 
that such person is or was an agent of the corporation, against expenses actually and reasonably 
incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action if such person 
acted in good faith, in a manner such person believed to be in the best interests of the corporation, 
and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position 
would use under similar circumstances.  No indemnification shall be made under this Section 3 for 
any of the following: 
 
  (a) Any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person shall have been 
adjudged to be liable to the corporation in the performance of such person's duty to the corporation, 
unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action was brought shall determine upon 
application that, in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably 
entitled to indemnity for the expenses which such court shall determine; 
 
  (b) Amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened or 
pending action, with or without court approval; or 
 
  (c) Expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action which 
is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval, unless it is settled with the approval of the 
Attorney General of California. 

Page 13 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

 
 Section 4.  INDEMNIFICATION AGAINST EXPENSES.  To the extent that an agent 
of the corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in 
Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, the agent shall 
be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the agent in connection 
therewith. 
 
 Section 5.  REQUIRED DETERMINATIONS.  Except as provided in Section 4 of this 
Article IX, any indemnification under this Article shall be made by the corporation only if authorized 
in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the agent is proper in the 
circumstances because the agent has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 2 
or 3 of this Article IX by: 
 
  (a) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties 
to such proceeding; or 
  (b) The court in which such proceeding is or was pending upon application 
made by the corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person rendering services in connection 
with the defense, whether or not such application by the agent, attorney, or other person is opposed 
by the corporation. 
 
 Section 6.  ADVANCE OF EXPENSES.  Expenses incurred in defending any 
proceeding may be advanced by the corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding 
upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the agent to repay such amount unless it shall be 
determined ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Article IX. 
 
 Section 7.  OTHER INDEMNIFICATION.  No provision made by the corporation to 
indemnify its directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the articles 
of incorporation, bylaws, a resolution of directors, an agreement, or otherwise, shall be valid unless 
consistent with this Article IX.  Nothing contained in this Article IX shall affect any right to 
indemnification to which persons other than such directors and officers may be entitled by contract 
or otherwise. 
 
 Section 8.  FORMS OF INDEMNIFICATION NOT PERMITTED.  No indemnification 
or advance shall be made under this Article IX, except as provided in Section 4 or Section 5(b), in 
any circumstance if it appears that: 
 
  (a) It would be inconsistent with a provision of the articles of incorporation, 
bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged cause of action asserted 
in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other amounts were paid, which prohibits 
or otherwise limits indemnification; or 
 
  (b) It would be inconsistent with any condition expressly imposed by a 
court in approving a settlement. 
 
 Section 9.  INSURANCE.  The corporation shall have the power to purchase and 
maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation against any liability asserted against or 
incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the 
corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the provisions 

Page 14 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

of this Article IX; provided, however, that the corporation shall have no power to purchase and 
maintain such insurance to indemnify any agent of the corporation for a violation of Section 5233 of 
the Code. 
 

ARTICLE X 
RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
 Section 1.  MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS.  The corporation shall 
keep (a) adequate and correct books and records of account kept either in written form or in any 
other form capable of being converted into written form and (b) minutes, in written form, of the 
proceedings of the board of directors and committees of the board, which shall be promptly provided 
to the Sole Member.  All such records shall be kept at the corporation's principal executive office, or 
if its principal executive office is outside the State of California, at its principal office in this state. 
 
 Section 2.  MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS.  The 
corporation shall keep at its principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is not in the 
State of California, at its principal office in this state, the original or a copy of its articles of 
incorporation and bylaws, as amended to date, that shall be open to inspection by the Sole Member 
or the directors at all reasonable times during office hours.  If the principal executive office of the 
corporation is outside the State of California and the corporation has no principal office in this state, 
the Secretary shall, upon the written request of the Sole Member or any director, furnish to such 
director a copy of the articles of incorporation or bylaws, as amended to date. 
 
 Section 3.  INSPECTION.  The Sole Member and every director shall have the 
absolute right at any reasonable time, and from time to time, to inspect all books, records, and 
documents of every kind and the physical properties of the corporation.  Such inspection by the Sole 
Member or a director may be made in person or by agent or attorney and the right of inspection 
includes the right to copy and make extracts. 
 
 Section 4.  ANNUAL REPORTS.  The board of directors shall cause an annual report 
to be sent to the directors and the Sole Member within 120 days of the corporation's fiscal year end.  
That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fiscal year: 
 
  (a)  The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation 
as of the end of the fiscal year; 
 
  (b)  The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds; 
 
  (c)  The revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and 
restricted to particular purposes; 
 
  (d)  The expenses or disbursements of the corporation for both general 
and restricted purposes; and 
 
  (e)   Any information required by Section 5 of this Article X. 
 

Page 15 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

  The annual report shall be accompanied by any report thereon of independent 
accountants or, if there is no such report, by the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation 
that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of the corporation. 
 
 Section 5.  ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND 
INDEMNIFICATIONS.  As part of the annual report to the Sole Member and all directors, the 
corporation shall annually prepare and mail or deliver to the Sole Member and each director within 
120 days after the corporation's fiscal year end, a statement (described below) of any transaction or 
indemnification (i) in which the corporation was a party and (ii) in which an "interested person" had 
a direct or indirect material financial interest.  For this purpose, an "interested person" is any director 
or officer of the corporation. 
 
The statement shall include the following information: 
 
  (a) A brief description of any transaction during the previous fiscal year 
that involved more than $50,000, or was one of a number of transactions in which the same 
interested person had a direct or indirect material financial interest involving, in the aggregate, more 
than $50,000; 
 
  (b) The names of interested persons involved in such transactions 
described in the preceding paragraph (a), their relationship to the corporation, the nature of their 
interest in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest; provided, however, that if 
the transaction was with a partnership in which the interested person is a partner, only the interest 
of the partnership need be stated; and 
 
  (c) A brief description of the amount and circumstances of any 
indemnifications or advances aggregating more than $10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any officer 
or director of the corporation under Article IX of these bylaws, unless that indemnification already 
has been approved by the directors under Section 5238(e)(2) of the Code. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
GENERAL MATTERS 

 
 Section 1.  CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS. All checks, 
drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in 
the name of or payable to the corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by such person or persons 
and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be determined by resolution of the board of directors. 
 
 Section 2.  CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS; HOW EXECUTED.  
Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the board of directors may authorize any officer or 
officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on 
behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and, 
unless so authorized or ratified by the board of directors or within the agency power of an officer, no 
officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation by any contract 
or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or for any amount. 
 
 Section 3.  REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS.  The 
chairman of the board, the president, or any vice president, or any other person authorized by 

Page 16 of 41



 

 
150003.00101/118978610v.1 

resolution of the board of directors or by any of the foregoing designated officers, is authorized to 
vote on behalf of the corporation any and all shares of any other corporation or corporations, foreign 
or domestic, standing in the name of the corporation.  The authority granted to said officers to vote 
or represent on behalf of the corporation any and all shares held by the corporation in any other 
corporation or corporations may be exercised by any such officer in person or by any person 
authorized to do so by a proxy duly executed by said officer. 
 
 Section 4.  CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS.  Unless the context requires 
otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the Law shall govern the 
construction of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the singular number 
includes the plural, the plural number includes the singular, the masculine gender includes the 
feminine and neuter, and the term "person" includes both a corporation and a natural person.  All 
references in these bylaws to the Law, the Law, or to the Code shall be deemed to be those in effect 
from time to time. 
 

ARTICLE XII 
AMENDMENTS 

 
 New bylaws may be adopted or these bylaws may be amended or repealed by solely 
the written consent of the Sole Member; provided, however, that if the articles of incorporation of the 
corporation set forth the number of authorized directors of the corporation, the authorized number of 
directors may be changed only by an amendment of the articles of incorporation. 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned, being the duly elected and acting Secretary of The Cottonwood 
School, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, does hereby certify that the foregoing 
Bylaws constitute the Bylaws of this corporation as duly adopted at the meeting of the Sole Member 
on ________, 2019. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate this ___ day 
of ______, 2019. 
 
 
           
     ________________________________ 
     Christina Mulford, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 41



 
150003.00101/118978186v.1 

1 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
OF 

THE COTTONWOOD SCHOOL 

Article I 
Purpose 

Section 1.1. This Conflict of Interest Policy (this “Policy”) has been adopted and 
approved by the Board of Directors of The Cottonwood School (the “Corporation”) for the 
purposes of (1) protecting the Corporation’s interest when it is contemplating entering into a 
transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an Interested Person (as 
defined hereinafter) or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction; and (2) establishing 
policies and procedures to be adhered to and implemented by the Corporation whenever it is 
contemplating entering into such transactions or arrangements, and whenever determining 
appropriate levels of compensation, direct and indirect, including benefits and perquisites for 
any Interested Person.  The Corporation and each director, officer, member of a committee with 
Board-delegated powers, and key employee intends to comply with this Policy in such a manner 
so as to avoid any "excess benefit transaction" that would be subject to intermediate sanctions 
and excise taxes under section 4958 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
“Code”).  This Policy also is intended to supplement, but not replace, any applicable federal or 
state laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable corporations, and 
the Corporation shall comply with the requirements of each such federal or state law in addition 
to the requirements of this Policy.   

Section 1.2. The Corporation is a nonprofit corporation duly organized and existing 
under the laws of the state of California, which has been recognized by the Internal Revenue 
Service as exempt from income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Code, and as such is organized 
and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, and scientific purposes, not for pecuniary 
profit, and no part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any person 
or non-exempt entity.   

Article II 
Definitions 

Section 2.1. Interested Person 

Any director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated powers, or key 
employee, as defined below, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is 
an interested person ("Interested Person").   

Section 2.2. Financial Interest 

 A person has a "financial interest" if the person has, directly or indirectly, through 
business, investment or family, any of the following: 

Page 18 of 41



 
150003.00101/118978186v.1 

2 

 a. an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation has 
a transaction or arrangement, or 

  
 b. a compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or individual 

with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or 
 
 c. a potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement 

with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a transaction or 
arrangement. 

 “Compensation” includes direct and indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors that 
are not insubstantial, benefits, perquisites, reimbursements for personal expenses, or 
entitlements relating to personal uses of property or service rights of the Corporation. 

 A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Section 3.2, a person 
who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board 
or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists. 

Section 2.3. Key Employee 

 A person is a “key employee” if he or she meets the three tests set forth for that term in 
the Glossary to the Instructions to Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax. 
Those tests generally provide that a key employee is an employee who has (i) reportable 
compensation from the Corporation and all related organizations, for the calendar year, in excess 
of $150,000; (ii) responsibilities similar to officers and directors or manages a discrete segment 
of the Corporation that represents at least 10% of its activities, assets, income, expenses, or 
capital budget; and (iii) is one of the 20 employees with the highest reportable compensation 
from the organization and related organizations for the calendar year. 

Article III 
Conflict Procedures 

 Section 3.1. Duty to Disclose 

 In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an Interested Person must 
disclose the existence of his or her financial interest and all material facts to the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation (the "Board") or to any special committees with Board-delegated 
powers (e.g., conflicts or compensation committees) considering the proposed transaction or 
arrangement. 

 Section 3.2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists 

 After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion 
with the Interested Person, he/she shall excuse himself/herself from the Board or committee 
meeting while the determination of whether a conflict of interest exists is discussed and voted 

Page 19 of 41



 
150003.00101/118978186v.1 

3 

upon.  The remaining Board or committee members shall determine whether a conflict of interest 
exists. 

 Section 3.3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest 

 a. An Interested Person may make a presentation at the Board or committee 
meeting, but after such presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, 
and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement that results in the possible conflict of interest.   

 b. The Board or the committee shall undertake, or appoint a disinterested person or 
committee to undertake, an appropriate due diligence investigation, including an analysis of all 
material facts related to the possible conflict of interest, collection of data on comparable 
arrangements or transactions, and the development and investigation of alternatives to the 
proposed transaction or arrangement. 

 c. After exercising due diligence, the Board or committee shall determine whether 
the Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or 
arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest. 

 d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably attainable 
under circumstances that would not give rise to a conflict of interest, the Board or committee 
shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or 
arrangement is in the Corporation's best interest and for its own benefit and charitable, 
educational, and scientific purposes and whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to the 
Corporation, and shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or 
arrangement in conformity with such determinations. 

 Section 3.4. Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy 

 a. If the Board or committee has reasonable cause to believe that a director, officer, 
or key employee has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall inform 
such person of the basis for such belief and afford such person an opportunity to explain the 
alleged failure to disclose. 

 b. After hearing the response of such person and making such further investigation 
as may be warranted under the circumstances, if the Board or committee determines that the 
director, officer, or key employee is an Interested Person and has failed to disclose an actual or 
possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.  Prompt 
corrective action must be required in order to avoid the second-tier penalty tax under section 
4958 of the Code and other additional liability and must include full restitution to the 
Corporation.   

Page 20 of 41



 
150003.00101/118978186v.1 

4 

Article IV 
Records of Proceedings 

 Section 4.1. The minutes of the Board and any special committee with Board-delegated 
powers shall contain the following:   

 a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a 
financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature 
of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was 
present, and the decision of the Board or committee as to whether a conflict of interest 
exists. 

 b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to 
the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives 
to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in 
connection therewith. 

Article V 
Compensation Procedures 

 Section 5.1. No Interested Person shall vote on any matter relating to his or her 
compensation, irrespective of whether said compensation is received directly or indirectly from 
the Corporation.  No Interested Person, however, is prohibited from providing information to the 
Board or a committee regarding compensation, including factual data on comparable 
compensation for comparable services or the reasonableness of the proposed compensation.   

 Section 5.2. The Corporation shall endeavor to ensure that all compensation 
arrangements affecting Interested Persons are objectively reasonable, based on the relevant 
market for persons of comparable skills, training, education and experience and performing 
similar duties for comparable organizations under similar conditions and circumstances.  The 
Corporation shall consider and give due weight to studies published by third parties regarding 
rates of compensation whenever and, to the extent that, such studies are reliable, comparable 
and available. 

Article VI 
Annual Statements 

 Section 6.1. Each director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated 
powers, and key employee shall annually sign a statement which affirms that such person: 

 a. has received a copy of this Policy of the Corporation, 

 b. has read and understands this Policy, 

 c. has agreed to comply with this Policy, and 

Page 21 of 41



 
150003.00101/118978186v.1 

5 

 d. understands that the Corporation is a charitable organization and that in order to 
maintain its federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish 
one or more of its stated charitable, educational, and scientific purposes and do not result 
in private inurement or unreasonable or excessive economic benefit to private individuals 
or entities. 

Article VII 
Periodic Reviews 

 Section 7.1. To ensure that the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with its 
charitable, educational, and scientific purposes and that it does not engage in activities that could 
jeopardize its status as an organization exempt from federal income tax, the Corporation shall 
conduct periodic reviews of its compensation arrangements and any other transactions or 
arrangements that may provide a financial interest to any Interested Person.  The periodic 
reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: 

 a. Whether compensation arrangements are reasonable,  

 b. Whether transactions of the Corporation result in private inurement or 
impermissible private benefit, 

 c. Whether transactions and arrangements with third parties conform to written 
policies, including this Policy, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable payments for 
goods and services, further the Corporation’s charitable, educational, and scientific 
purposes, and do not result in private inurement or impermissible private benefit, and 

 d. Whether the Corporation’s expense reimbursement procedures are adequate in 
terms of required documentation, whether persons seeking reimbursement are 
complying with these procedures, and whether such expenses relate to furthering the 
Corporation’s charitable, educational, and scientific purposes and do not result in private 
inurement or impermissible private benefit. 

Article VIII 
Use of Outside Experts 

 Section 8.1. In determining whether a conflict of interest exists, determining 
compensation or conducting the periodic reviews required by this Policy, the Corporation may, 
but need not, use outside advisors and consultants.  If outside experts are used, their use shall 
be documented, but shall not relieve the Board of its responsibility for ensuring that periodic 
reviews are conducted in accordance with this Policy. 

 
 Adopted by the Board of Directors of The Cottonwood School, on _______, 2019, 

effective immediately. 

Page 22 of 41



 

 6 
 
150003.00101/118978186v.1 

AGREEMENT TO COMPLY 
WITH 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
 

I, a director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated powers, or key 

employee, hereby state that I have received a copy of the Conflict of Interest Policy of The 

Cottonwood School, have read it and understand it, and hereby agree to comply with this Policy.  

I understand that I will engage only in activities to further the charitable, educational, and 

scientific purposes of this Corporation, which will not result in private inurement, unreasonable 

private benefit, or acts of self-dealing. 

 
 
Signature: _________________________________ 
 
 
Print name:________________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________________ 

 
 

Page 23 of 41



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 1 

State of California 
Department of Industrial Relations 

OFFICE OF SELF-INSURANCE PLANS 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT 
TO SELF-INSURE AS A PUBLIC AGENCY EMPLOYER SELF-INSURER 

All questions must be answered. If not applicable, enter “N/A”. 

To the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations: The public agency employer identified 
below submits the following information to obtain a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure the payment of 
workers’ compensation under California Labor Code Section 3700. 

LEGAL NAME OF APPLICANT (Show exactly as on Charter or other official documents):  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

City: ___________________________________ State: __________ Zip + 4: __________ - _________ 

Federal Tax ID # of Group: ____________________   

CONTACT - Who Should Correspondence Regarding This Applicant Be Addressed To: 

Name: ________________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 

Company Name: ____________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

City: ___________________________________ State: __________ Zip + 4: __________ - _________ 

Phone: _____________________________ E-Mail: _________________________________________ 

TYPE OF PUBLIC ENTITY (Check one): 

       City and/or County      School District          Police and/or Fire District          Hospital District 

       Joint Powers Authority    Other (describe): __________________________________________ 

TYPE OF APPLICATION (Check one): 

       New Application        Reapplication (Merger/Unification)    Reapplication (Name Change) 

       Other (describe): _________________________________________________________________ 

Date Self-Insurance Program will begin: ___________________________________________________ 

Page 24 of 41



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 2 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________                    ______CURRENT WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM__________          ___          ______ 

       Currently Insured with State Fund  Policy # ___________________ Expiration Date: ____________ 

       Currently Self Insured, Certificate # ____________________ 

       Other (describe): _________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________                                          _____CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION                     __________          ___          ______ 

Who will be administering your agency’s workers’ compensation claims? (Check one) 

       JPA will administer 

       Third Party Administrator, TPA Certificate # _________________ 

       Public entity will self-administer                          Insurance Carrier will administer 

Name of Third Party Administrator: 

Name: _____________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 

Company Name: _________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ________________________________________________________________________ 

City: ________________________________ State: __________ Zip + 4: __________ - _________ 

Phone: _____________________________ E-Mail: ______________________________________ 

# of claims reporting locations to be used to handle Agency’s claims:  ________ 

Does applicant currently have a California Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure?    Yes      No 

If yes, what is the current Certificate Number: ___________ 

Total Number of Affiliate’s California employees to be covered by Group: _____________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________                                              _____AGENCY EMPLOYER                         __________          ___          ______ 

Current # of Agency Employees:  _________  # of Public Safety Employees (police//fire):  _________  

If school District, # of certificated employees:  _________   

Will all Agency employees be covered by this self-insurance plan?        Yes    No 

If ‘No’, explain who is not covered and how workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to the 
excluded employees: 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 25 of 41



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 3 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________                                       _____JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY                  __________          ___          ______ 

 

Will applicant be a member of a JPA for workers’ compensation ? 
 
        Yes            No   (If ‘yes’, complete the following) 
 
Effective date of JPA Membership: ____________________ JPA Certificate # _____________________ 
 
Name of JPA: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________                                        _ _____AGENCY SAFETY PROGRAM                __________          ___          ______ 
 

Does the Agency have a written Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP)?          Yes          No 
 
Individual responsible for Agency workplace safety and IIPP program: 
 
Name: _____________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 
 
Company Name: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City: ________________________________ State: __________ Zip + 4: __________ - _________ 
 
Phone: _____________________________ E-Mail: ______________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________                                        _ _____SUPPLEMENTAL COVERAGE                __________          ___          ______ 
 

1.) Will your program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under a STANDARD 
workers’ compensation insurance policy?          Yes          No  (If ‘Yes’, complete the following): 
 
Name of Excess Pool/Carrier: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Policy #: _________________________  Effective Date of Coverage: ____________________________ 
 
2.) Will your program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under a SPECIFIC 
EXCESS workers’ compensation insurance policy?          Yes          No   (If ‘Yes’, complete the following): 
 
Name of Excess Pool/Carrier: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Policy #: _________________________  Effective Date of Coverage: ____________________________ 
 
Retention Limits:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 

3.) Will your program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under an AGGREGATE 
EXCESS (stop loss) specific excess workers’ compensation insurance policy?          Yes          No       
(If ‘Yes’, complete the following): 
 
Name of Excess Pool/Carrier: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Policy #: _________________________  Effective Date of Coverage: ____________________________ 
 
Retention Limits:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

Page 26 of 41



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 4 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________                                     ____RESOLUTION FROM GOVERNING BOARD           ________          ___     ______ 

Attach a properly executed Governing Board Resolution.  See attached sample resolution on page 5. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________                                        _ ___       __CERTIFICATION                             __________          ___          ______ 

The undersigned on behalf of the applicant hereby applies for a Certificate of 
Consent to Self-Insure the payment of workers' compensation liabilities pursuant 
to Labor Code Section 3700. The above information is submitted for the purpose 
of procuring said Certificate from the Director of Industrial Relations, State of 
California. If the Certificate is issued, the applicant agrees to comply with 
applicable California statutes and regulations pertaining to the payment of 
compensation that may become due to the applicant's employees covered by the 
Certificate. 

X_____________________________________________    DATE: __________________________________ 

SIGNED: Authorized Official / Representative 

______________________________________________ 
Printed Name  

______________________________________________ 
Title  

______________________________________________ 
Agency Name 

Page 27 of 41



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 5 

RESOLUTION NO.: __________   DATED: __________________________ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION 
TO THE DIRECTOR OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR A CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT TO SELF-INSURE 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION LIABILITIES 

At a meeting of the _____________________________________________________ 
    (Enter Name of the Board) 

of the ________________________________________________________________ 
  (Enter Name of Public Agency, District, Etc.) 

a ______________________________________ organized and existing under the 
   (Enter Type of Agency, i.e., County, City, School District, etc.) 

laws of the State of California, held on the _______ day of ______________, 20___, 

the following resolution was adopted: 

RESOLVED, that the above named public agency is authorized and empowered to 
make application to the Director of Industrial Relations, State of California, for a 
Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure workers' compensation liabilities and 
representatives of Agency are authorized to execute any and all documents 
required for such application. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I HAVE SIGNED AND AFFIXED THE AGENCY SEAL. 

X_____________________________________________    DATE: __________________________________ 
SIGNED: Board Secretary or Chair 

______________________________________________ 
Printed Name  

______________________________________________ 
Title  

 Affix Seal Here 

______________________________________________ 
Agency Name 

Page 28 of 41



1 

AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION 
EL DORADO CHARTER SELPA 

This Agreement for Participation (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the El Dorado 
Charter SELPA (“SELPA”), the El Dorado County Office of Education (“EDCOE”), and 
_______________________________________________ (“LEA”),a California public charter 
school, collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, each special educational local plan area is required to administer local plans 
submitted pursuant to Education Code section 56205 et seq., administer the allocation of funds 
pursuant to Education Code section 56836 et seq., and ensure that it has in effect policies, 
procedures, and programs that are consistent with state laws, regulations, and policies 
governing certain aspects of special education; 

WHEREAS, a charter school that is deemed a local educational agency for purposes of special 
education is required to participate in an approved local plan pursuant to Education Code 
section 56195.1(f); 

WHEREAS, LEA is a charter school that is deemed a local educational agency for purposes of 
special education pursuant to Education Code section 47641 and is responsible for complying 
with all provisions of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.) and 
implementing regulations as they relate to local educational agencies;  

WHEREAS, the SELPA as authorized by the California State Board of Education serves as the 
special educational local plan area for California charter schools deemed local educational 
agencies pursuant to Education Code section 47641 that have successfully completed the SELPA 
membership process and have signed this Agreement for Participation (“Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, EDCOE is designated in the local plan as the “responsible local agency” for the 
SELPA, which means the administrative entity, the duties of which shall include, but are not 
limited to, receiving and distributing state and federal special education funds pursuant to the 
allocation plan, providing administrative support, and coordinating implementation of the plan; 

WHEREAS, the actions and decisions of the parties are guided by the values of: 

1. Commitment – maintaining high standards for performance in student achievement,
operations, governance and finance;

2. Integrity – adherence to moral and ethical principles in all aspects of the work;
3. Fairness – impartial and just treatment of all stakeholders;
4. Partnership – collaborative decision making and accountability;
5. Knowledge – understanding of charter school law and practice; and
6. Transparency- access to the information, decisions, and actions of the organization;

WHEREAS, the purpose of this agreement is to set forth the various responsibilities of LEA, 
EDCOE, and SELPA to ensure that all charter pupils with exceptional needs within the SELPA 
receive appropriate special education programs.   
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the parties hereto as follows: 

The Cottonwood School

Page 29 of 41



 

 

2 

 

 
1. SHARED COMMITMENTS 

1.1. Resource Allocation. Parties shall demonstrate commitment to the promises set forth in 
this Agreement by allocating appropriate resources. 

 

1.2. Standard of Conduct. Parties, at all times, shall conduct themselves in such a manner as 
to act in the best interests of all other SELPA members. LEA shall not engage in any 
activity or enterprise which would tend to injure or expose the SELPA or any of its 
members to any significant risk of harm or injury of any kind.   

 

1.3. Compliance. All parties to this agreement shall identify and comply with applicable laws, 
regulations, policies, procedures and generally accepted standards. Each party will 
address any identified compliance gaps in a responsible and timely fashion.  

 

1.4. Continual Improvement.  Parties are expected to continually improve by setting 
performance objectives, executing plans and taking necessary corrective actions for 
deficiencies identified by any and all internal and/or external assessments. 

 

1.5. Accuracy of Business Records.  Parties shall ensure that any and all financial books and 
records conform to generally accepted accounting principles and state reporting 
requirements. Records must be accurate in all material respects. Records must be 
legible, transparent, and reflect actual transactions and payments and be open to 
inspection by the other party upon a reasonable request.  

 

1.6. Accuracy of Student Records.  Parties shall ensure that any and all student records 
conform to prescribed formats.  Records must be legible, transparent, reflect actual 
transactions and payments, and be accurate in all material respects.  Records must be 
open to inspection and review by other parties with legitimate educational interest upon a 
request. 

 

1.7. Documentation. Parties shall maintain documentation necessary to demonstrate 
compliance with this Agreement and compliance with applicable state and federal 
statutes and regulations.  

 

1.8. Local and Allocation Plans. Parties agree to the provisions of the Local and Allocation 
Plans as updated and approved by the CEO Council. 

 

1.9. Provision of Free and Appropriate Public Education. The LEA is solely responsible for 
the provision of special education programs and services to eligible students enrolled in 
the LEA.  The Parties understand and agree that the SELPA or EDCOE shall have no 
responsibility for the operation of any direct educational program service of any kind, that 
the SELPA has no duty or authority to provide FAPE to individual students, and that the 
SELPA has no duty or authority to make decisions regarding the educational 
programming of students enrolled in the LEA.   

 
2. LEA RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.1 Programs and Services. The LEA is solely and exclusive responsible for the following 
mandated activities in order to operate its special education programs and services for 
students enrolled in the LEA. As such, the LEA shall: 

Page 30 of 41



 

 

3 

 

 

2.1.1. Select, employ, compensate, and determine the duties of, or establish 
appropriate contracts for the provision of, special education teachers, 
instructional aides, and other personnel as required to conduct the program 
specified in the Local Plan, and in compliance with state and federal 
mandates. 
 

2.1.2. Conduct and/or contract those programs operated by the LEA in conformance 
with the Local Plan and the state and federal mandates. 
 

2.1.3. Organize and administer the activities of the IEP teams, including the selection 
of the LEA staff and who will serve as members of the IEP team in 
conformance with Education Code Section 56341 and in compliance with the 
Local Plan. 

 

2.1.4. Develop and implement program objectives and the evaluation of the program 
effectiveness.  

 

2.1.5. Communicate with the parents and/or legal guardians of students in 
conformance with laws, regulations and the provisions of the Local Plan. 

 

2.1.6. Provide for the documentation and reporting of assessment procedures used 
for the placement of individuals and the security thereof.  

 

2.1.7. Provide for the continuous review of placements and the assessment 
procedures employed to insure their effectiveness and applicability, and insure 
the continued implementation and compliance with eligibility criteria. 

 

2.1.8. Provide for the integration of students with disabilities into the general 
education school programs and provide for evaluating the results of such 
integration according to specifications of the Local Plan. 

 

2.1.9. Conduct the review of individual placements requested by the parents and/or 
legal guardians of the student in accordance with the Local Plan. 

 

2.1.10. Prepare and submit all required reports, including reports on student 
enrollment, program expenditures, and program evaluation. 

 

2.2. Fiscal Responsibilities.  Receive and expend special education funding in accordance 
with the Charter SELPA Allocation Plan. 

 

2.3. Restricted Funds. As a condition of membership and participation in the SELPA, LEA 
warrants and represents that at no time during the term of this Agreement and LEA’s 
membership and participation in the SELPA shall the LEA, directly or indirectly, provide 
special education funding for the benefit of a for-profit entity. All funding provided through 
the Charter SELPA shall be treated as a restricted funding source to be expended only for 
special education or special education services.  Nothing contained herein shall be 
interpreted as prohibiting any LEA from expending funds to contract with a state-certified 
nonpublic agency/school for the benefit of children served, in accordance with the 
approved master contract and individual services agreements as provided for in federal 
and state law. 

Page 31 of 41



 

 

4 

 

 

2.4. Audit Report. Annually provide the SELPA with the LEA’s annual, independent financial 
audit report, on or before December 20th each year, unless an extension has been 
granted by the State Controller’s Office, in which case an extension will be granted to the 
charter as well.  LEA further agrees to provide SELPA copies of any and all State 
Controller’s Office communications regarding audit report corrective actions and a 
corrected audit report, if applicable. Should an LEA be the subject of an investigation by 
any federal, state, or local agency, including but not limited to the Fiscal Crisis 
Management and Assistance Team (“FCMAT”) arising out of or related to allegations of 
fiscal mismanagement, failure to meet generally accepted accounting principles, or any 
violation of a provision of law, the LEA shall immediately notify SELPA and provide the 
SELPA with a copy of any written correspondence related thereto. 

 

2.5. Membership Responsibilities. Adhere to governance structure within SELPA Local Plan 
and Policies including designating appropriate representatives to serve on required 
councils and committees; ensure appropriate LEA representatives attend and participate 
in SELPA governance meetings as set forth in the Local Plan, Policies and Procedures. 

 

2.6. Management Decisions. Consistent with this Agreement, LEA shall have full and 
exclusive authority and responsibility for classifying employment positions within their 
LEA. The managerial prerogatives of any participating LEA member shall not be infringed 
upon by any other participating LEA member except upon mutual consent of an affected 
LEA member(s), or unless as otherwise set forth.  LEA shall not undertake to 
independently act on behalf of the SELPA or any of its members without express written 
authorization of the SELPA. 

 

2.7. Participation.  Ensure appropriate LEA representatives attend and participate in SELPA 
governance meetings and committees as set forth in the Local Plan, Policies and 
Procedures. 

 

2.8. Reporting Requirements. Submit all required federal, state and SELPA reports and data 
requests in the prescribed format and at the specified due date.  Upon written request by 
the SELPA, LEA shall provide any requested information, documents, writings, or 
information of any sort without delay, except as otherwise prohibited by law. 
 

2.9. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the SELPA and its individual other members, 
EDCOE, the El Dorado County Superintendent of Schools, and each of their respective 
directors, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers (the Indemnified Parties), from any 
claim or demand, damages, losses or expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorney fees) that arise in any manner from an actual or alleged failure by LEA to fulfill 
one or more of the LEA member’s obligations except to the extent that such suit arises 
from the SELPA, EDCOE, or the El Dorado County Superintendent of Schools’ 
negligence. 
 

3. SELPA DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1 Services. In order to accomplish the goals set forth in the Local Plan, SELPA shall 
provide the following services and activities for the LEA: 
 

Page 32 of 41



 

 

5 

 

3.1.1. Receive, compile, and submit required enrollment reports and compute all 
special education apportionments; receive data from LEA to compile and 
submit budgets for the programs and monitor the fiscal aspects of the program 
conducted, and receive the special education apportionments as authorized 
by applicable law. 

 

3.1.2. Maintain SELPA policies and procedures for referring and placing individuals 
with exceptional needs who are enrolled in the LEA, including the methods 
and procedures for communication with the parents and/or guardians of the 
students according to SELPA Local Plan, Policies and Procedures. 

 

3.1.3. Coordinate the organization and maintenance of the Special Education 
Community Advisory Committee (“CAC”) to coordinate the implementation of 
the Local Plan and provide for the attendance of designated members of the 
SELPA’s staff at all regularly scheduled CAC meetings as required by law.  

 

3.1.4. Coordinate community resources with those provided by LEA and SELPA, 
including providing such contractual agreements as may be required. 
 

3.1.5. Coordinate state Quality Assurance Process. 
 

3.1.6. Provide alternative dispute resolution supports and services. 
 

3.1.7. Develop interagency referral and placement procedures. 
 

3.1.8. Provide regular personnel development training sessions for LEA staff 
responsible for administering or delivering special education programs and 
services. 

 

3.1.9. Provide the method and forms to enable the LEA to report to the SELPA on 
student enrollment and program expenditures. Establish and maintain a pupil 
information system. 

 

3.1.10. Provide reasonable and appropriate technical assistance and information to 
the LEA upon request from LEA administration, including but not limited to: 

 

1. Evidenced Based Practices;  
2. Program Development and Improvement; 
3. Individual cases; 
4. State complaints; 
5. Requests for due process mediation and hearing; and 
6. Appropriate programs and services for specific pupils. 

 

3.1.11. Perform other services reasonable and necessary to the administration and 
coordination of the Local Plan. 
 

3.2. Governance. Organize and maintain the governance structure of the Local Plan including 
various committees and councils to monitor the operations of the SELPA and make 
recommendations for necessary revisions, including, but not limited to, the Local Plan, 
Allocation Plan and Policies. 

Page 33 of 41



 

 

6 

 

 
3.3. Data Reporting.  Establish and maintain methods, timelines and forms to submit required 

federal, state and SELPA reports.  
 

3.4. Public Meetings. Schedule public meetings for purposes of governance activities and 
adopting the Annual Service Plan and Budget Plan. 

 
3.5. Fiscal Responsibilities.  Receive, distribute, and oversee the expenditure of special 

education funds in accordance with federal and state regulations and the SELPA 
Allocation Plan. 
 

3.6. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. The SELPA shall be held harmless and indemnify 
EDCOE and the El Dorado County Superintendent of Schools for any costs of any kind or 
nature arising out of or related to this agreement other than as specifically contemplated 
herein, except to the extent that such cost arises from EDCOE and the El Dorado County 
Superintendent of Schools’ negligence. 

 
4. EDCOE DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1. The Parties understand that EDCOE is designated in the Local Plan as the “responsible 
local agency” for the SELPA. EDCOE shall receive and distribute state and federal 
special education funds pursuant to the Allocation Plan, provide administrative support, 
and coordinate implementation of the Local Plan in accordance with state and federal 
law.  
 

4.2. EDCOE shall not be responsible for any LEA or SELPA obligations or duties of any kind 
or nature except as explicitly set forth in this agreement. 
 

5. TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND PARTICIPATION IN SELPA 
5.1. LEA may terminate this Agreement and participation in the SELPA in its sole discretion at the 

end of the fiscal year next occurring after having provided prior written notice to the 
SELPA, as follows: 
 

5.1.1. Prior initial written notice of intended termination to the SELPA at least twelve 
(12) months and one (1) day in advance of date of termination; and 
 

5.1.2. Final written notice of termination to the SELPA no more than six (6) months 
after the LEA’s initial notice of intended termination. 
 

5.2. The SELPA may initiate and complete termination of this Agreement and LEA’s 
participation in the SELPA in its sole discretion in accordance with the process and 
standards in SELPA Policies.  The SELPA will provide prior written notice to the LEA at 
least twelve (12) months as follows: 

 

5.2.1. Prior initial written notice of intended termination to the LEA at least twelve 
(12) months and one (1) day in advance of date of termination, and 
 

5.2.2. Final written notice of termination to the LEA no more than six (6) months after 
the SELPA’s initial notice of intended termination. 

Page 34 of 41



 

 

7 

 

 

5.3. Specifically the timeline and process above does not preclude the SELPA from initiating 
and completing the termination process in less than 12 months or by June 30 of the year 
immediately preceding the summary termination, if the member demonstrates: 

 

5.3.1. Egregious disregard of state and federal requirements to provide services to 
students; and/or 
 

5.3.2. Demonstrated systemic and material issues that would cause the SELPA to 
make a finding of “going concern” based on leadership, programmatic and/or 
fiscal solvency that would cause SELPA to reasonably believe the SELPA 
may be harmed by the continued membership of the LEA. 
 

The standards and timeline as determined by the SELPA shall, at a minimum, provide 
the LEA a reasonable opportunity for prior written notice and an opportunity to be heard 
by the Membership Appeals Committee. 

 
6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  

Should a dispute arise relating to the responsibility for service provision, governance activities, 
the distribution of funding, if a party believes that an action taken by the CEO Council will 
create an undue hardship, or that the action taken exceeds the authority granted to the CEO 
Council within the Local Plan and/or state or federal statute, the aggrieved party may request a 
review of the action with the appropriate governing body or CDE as appropriate.  
 

7. MUTUAL REPRESENTATIONS 

7.1. Authority and Capacity. The Parties have the authority and capacity to enter into this 
agreement. 
 

7.2. Full Disclosure.  All information heretofore furnished by the Parties for purposes of or in 
connection with this Agreement or any transaction contemplated hereby or thereby is true 
and accurate in all material respects on the date as of which such information is stated.  

 
7.3. No Conflicts. Neither party is under any restriction or obligation that may affect the 

performance of its obligations under this agreement. 
 

7.4. Enforceability. This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation, 
enforceable against the Parties according to its terms. 

  

Page 35 of 41



8 

8. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Parties hereto agree that nothing contained in this Agreement or otherwise shall be
deemed to have waived or modified any of their rights or remedies under the law.

This agreement is entered into for the 2019-20 year and, absent a new agreement or 

termination, continues each year thereafter.   

Executed on this  day of , 20 . 

In accordance with SELPA policy, , 

[INSERT Charter LEA Name] 

certifies that this agreement has been approved by the appropriate local board(s). 

LEA 

Date Signature of CEO of Charter LEA 

[PRINT CEO Name, Title] 

EL DORADO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Date Ed Manansala, Ed.D., Superintendent 

El Dorado County Office of Education 

Date David M. Toston, Associate Superintendent 

SELPA Programs 

El Dorado County Office of Education 

The Cottonwood School

Page 36 of 41



SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ASSURANCES 

1. Free Appropriate Public Education  20 United States Code (USC) Section (§) 1412
(a)(1)

It shall be the policy of this local educational agency (LEA) that a free appropriate public

education is available to all children residing in the LEA between the ages of three through

21 inclusive, including students with disabilities who have been suspended or expelled from
school.

2. Full Educational Opportunity 20 USC § 1412 (a)(2)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that all pupils with disabilities have access to educational
programs, nonacademic programs, and services available to non-disabled pupils.

3. Child Find  20 USC § 1412 (a)(3)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that all children with disabilities residing in the State, including

children with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State and children attending

private schools, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, and who are in need of special

education and related services are identified, located and evaluated. A practical method is

developed and implemented to determine which students with disabilities are currently

receiving needed special education and related services.

4. Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) 20
USC § 1412 (a)(4)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that an Individualized Education Program (IEP) or an
Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) is developed, reviewed and revised for each child
with a disability who requires special education and related services in order to benefit from
his/her individualized education program. It shall be the policy of this LEA that a review of an
IEP will be conducted on at least an annual basis to review a student’s progress and make
appropriate revisions.

5. Least Restrictive Environment  20 USC § 1412 (a)(5)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with

disabilities, including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are

educated with children who are not disabled. Special class, separate schooling, or other

removal of a student with disabilities from the general educational environment, occurs only

when the nature or severity of the disability of the student is such that education in general

classes with the use of supplemental aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily.

6. Procedural Safeguards  20 USC § 1412 (a)(6)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that children with disabilities and their parents shall be

afforded all procedural safeguards throughout the provision of a free appropriate public

education including the identification, evaluation, and placement process.

Page 37 of 41



7. Evaluation 20 USC § 1412 (a)(7)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a reassessment of a student with a disability shall be

conducted at least once every three years or more frequently, if appropriate.

8. Confidentiality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(8)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data

information and records maintained by the LEA relating to children with disabilities and their

parents and families shall be protected pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Act (FERPA).

9. Part C, Transition 20 USC § 1412 (a)(9)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a transition process for a child who is participating in

Early Intervention Programs (IDEA, Part C) with an IFSP is begun prior to a toddler’s third

birthday. The transition process shall be smooth, timely and effective for the child and family.

10. Private Schools  20 USC § 1412 (a)(10)

It shall be the policy of this LEA to assure that children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled by

their parents in private schools shall receive appropriate special education and related

services pursuant to LEA coordinated procedures. The proportionate amount of federal funds

will be allocated for the purpose of providing special education services to children with

disabilities voluntarily enrolled in private school by their parents.

11. Local Compliance Assurances 20 USC § 1412 (a)(11

It shall be the policy of this LEA that the local plan shall be adopted by the appropriate local

board(s) (district/county) and is the basis for the operation and administration of special

education programs; and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable

requirements of state and federal laws and regulations, including compliance with the

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973,

Section 504 of Public Law and the provisions of the California Education Code, Part 30.

12. Interagency 20 USC § 1412 (a)(12)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that interagency agreements or other mechanisms for

interagency coordination are in effect to ensure services required for FAPE are provided,

including the continuation of services during an interagency dispute resolution process.

13. Governance  20 USC § 1412 (a)(13)

It shall be the policy of this LEA to support and comply with the provisions of the governance

bodies and any necessary administrative support to implement the Local Plan. A final

determination that an LEA is not eligible for assistance under this part will not be made without

first affording that LEA with reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing through the

State Educational Agency.

Page 38 of 41



14. Personnel Qualifications  20 USC § 1412 (a)(14) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to ensure that personnel providing special education related 

services meet the highly qualified requirements as defined under federal law, including that 

those personnel have the content knowledge and skills to serve children with disabilities. 
 

This policy shall not be construed to create a right of action on behalf of an individual student 

for the failure of a particular LEA staff person to be highly qualified or to prevent a parent from 

filing a State complaint with the California Department of Education (CDE) about staff 

qualifications. 

 

15. Performance Goals and Indicators 20 USC § 1412 (a)(15) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to comply with the requirements of the performance goals 

and indicators developed by the CDE and provide data as required by the CDE. 

 

16. Participation in Assessments 20 USC § 1412 (a)(16) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA that all students with disabilities shall participate in state and 

district-wide assessment programs. The IEP team determines how a student will access 

assessments with or without accommodations, or access alternate assessments, consistent 

with state standards governing such determinations. 

 

17. Supplementation of State/Federal Funds 20 USC § 1412 (a)(17) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide assurances that funds received from Part B of the 

IDEA will be expended in accordance with the applicable provisions of the IDEA; will be used to 

supplement and not to supplant state, local and other Federal funds those funds. 

 

18. Maintenance of Effort  20 USC § 1412 (a)(18) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA that federal funds will not be used to reduce the level of 

local funds and/or combined level of local and state funds expended for the education of 

children with disabilities except as provided in Federal law and regulations. 
 

19. Public Participation 20 USC § 1412 (a)(19) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA that public hearings, adequate notice of the hearings, and an 

opportunity for comment available to the general public, including individuals with disabilities 

and parents of children with disabilities are held prior to the adoption of any policies and/or 

regulations needed to comply with Part B of the IDEA. 
 

20. Rule of Construction  20 USC § 1412 (a)(20) 

(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only) 
 

21. State Advisory Panel  20 USC § 1412 (a)(21) 

(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only) 
  

Page 39 of 41



22. SUSPENSION/EXPULSION  20 USC § 1412 (a)(22) 

The LEA assures that data on suspension and expulsion rates will be provided in a manner 

prescribed by the CDE. When indicated by data analysis, the LEA further assures that policies, 

procedures and practices related to the development and implementation of the IEPs will be 

revised. 

 
23. Access to Instructional Materials 20 USC § 1412 (a)(23) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide instructional materials to blind students or other 

students with print disabilities in a timely manner according to the state adopted National 

Instructional Materials Accessibility Standard. 
 

24. Overidentification and Disproportionality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(24) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to prevent the inappropriate disproportionate 

representation by race and ethnicity of students with disabilities. 
 

25. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine  20 USC § 1412 (a)(25) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to prohibit school personnel from requiring a student to obtain 

a prescription for a substance covered by the Controlled Substances Act as a condition of 

attending school or receiving a special education assessment and/or services. 

 

26. Distribution Of Funds  20 USC § 1411(e),(f)(1-3) 

(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only) 
 

27. Data  20 USC § 1418 (a-d) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide data or information to the CDE that may be 

required by regulations. 
 

28. Reading Literacy (State Board requirement, 2/99) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA that in order to improve the educational results for students 

with disabilities, Special Education Local Plan Area’s (SELPA) Local Plans shall include 

specific information to ensure that all students who require special education will participate in 

the California Reading Initiative. 

 

29. Charter Schools  EC 56207.5 (a-c) 

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a request by a charter school to participate as a local 

educational agency in a special education local plan area may not be treated differently from 

a similar request made by a school district.

Page 40 of 41



In accordance with Federal and State laws and regulations 

(Charter LEA name) 

certifies that this plan has been adopted by the appropriate local board(s) (LEA/county) and is 

the basis for the operation and administration of special education programs; and that the 

agency herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of state and federal laws, 

regulations and state policies and procedures, including compliance with the Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act, 20 United States Code (USC) 1400 et.seq, and implementing 

regulations under 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 300 and 303, 29 USC 794, 

705 (20), 794- 794b, the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the provisions of 

the California Education Code, Part 30 and Chapter 3, Division 1 of Title V of the California 

Code of Regulations. 

Be it further resolved, the local educational agency (LEA) superintendent shall administer the 

local implementation of procedures, in accordance with state and federal laws, rules, and 

regulations, which will ensure full compliance. 

Furthermore, the LEA superintendent ensures that policies and procedures covered by this 

assurance statement are on file at the LEA and the SELPA office. 

Yeas: Nays: 

Signed: 

Title: , 

Approved this day of , 20 

The Cottonwood School

Page 41 of 41


	Clear: 
	Save: 
	Print: 
	LEGAL NAME OF APPLICANT Show exactly as on Charter or other official documents: Cottonwood Charter School
	Address: 1740 E. Huntington Dr, #205
	City: Duarte
	State: CA
	Zip  4: 91010
	undefined: 
	Federal Tax ID  of Group: 83-3542401
	Name: Kimmi Buzzard
	Title: Deputy Executive Director
	Company Name: 
	Address_2: 1740 E. Huntington Dr, #205
	City_2: Duarte
	State_2: CA
	Zip  4_2: 91010
	undefined_2: 
	Phone: 562-584-0427
	EMail: kimmi@inspireschools.org
	Other describe: Public Charter School
	Type of Public Entity: Other
	Type of Application: New Application
	Other describe_2: 
	Date Self Insurance Program will begin: 05/01/2019
	Currently Insured with State Fund  Policy: 
	Expiration Date: 
	Current Insurance: Other
	Currently Self Insured Certificate: 
	Other describe_3: NEW
	Who will administer: TPA
	Third Party Administrator TPA Certificate: 025
	Name_2: Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc.
	Title_2: 
	Company Name_2: Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc.
	Address_3: PO Box 2290
	City_3: Gold River
	State_3: CA
	Zip  4_3: 95741
	undefined_3: 2290
	Phone_2: 9164031735
	EMail_2: 
	of claims reporting locations to be used to handle Agencys claims: 1
	If yes what is current Certificate Number: 
	Already self insured: No
	Total Number of Affiliates California employees to be covered by Group 1: 
	Current  of Agency Employees: 10
	of Public Safety Employees policefire: 0
	If school District  of certificated employees: 
	All employees in self insurance: Yes
	Text23: 
	Member of a JPA: Yes
	Effective date of JPA Membership: 05/01/2019
	JPA Certificate: 5557
	Name of JPA: California Charter Schools Joint Powers Authority, DBA CharterSAFE
	IIPP: Yes
	Name_3: Kimmi Buzzard
	Title_3: Deputy Executive Director
	Company Name_3: Inspire Charter Schools
	Address_4: 1740 E. Huntington Dr, #205
	City_4: Duarte
	State_4: CA
	Zip  4_4: 91010
	undefined_4: 
	Phone 1: 562-584-0427
	EMail_3: kimmi@inspireschools.org
	Name of Excess PoolCarrier: 
	Policy: 
	Effective Date of Coverage: 
	Excess: Yes
	Name of Excess PoolCarrier_2: California Charter Schools Joint Powers Authority, DBA CharterSAFE
	Policy_2: SP 4048972
	Effective Date of Coverage_2: 11/8/2018
	Retention Limits: TBD
	Name of Excess PoolCarrier_3: 
	Policy_3: 
	Effective Date of Coverage_3: 
	Retention Limits_2: 
	Standard Policy: No
	Aggregate Excess: No
	DATE: 
	Printed Name: 
	Title_4: 
	Agency Name: 
	RESOLUTION NO: 
	DATED: 
	At a meeting of the: Cottonwood Charter School
	of the: Cottonwood Charter School
	a: Public Charter School
	laws of the State of California held on the: 
	day of: 
	20: 
	DATE_2: 
	Printed Name_2: 
	Title_5: 
	Agency Name_2: 


